From: DeRosa, Ellen <Ellen.DeRosa@dobi.nj.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, June 7, 2017 10:47 AM

To: CMS Shop

Cc: DeRosa, Ellen

Subject: New Jersey Recommendation to Not Allow Vertical Choice

Dear HHS,

New Jersey appreciates the opportunity to make a recommendation with respect to allowing the
“vertical choice” option for New Jersey employers in the Federally-facilitated SHOP (FF-SHOP). As
explained below, New Jersey recommends that “vertical choice” not be available to New Jersey
employers.

New Jersey is concerned that “vertical choice” would lead to adverse selection.

Section 155.705(b)(3)(viii)(C) would allow employees of small employer purchasing coverage through
the FF-SHOP to select from among all of the various plans offered by the issuer selected by the small
employer. The choice among various plans would extend across all metal level plans, which may include
different products. Essentially, vertical choice would provide employees the same choice of plans
available in the individual market.

To anticipate what might occur with vertical choice, it is important to consider the product and plan
landscape of the New Jersey individual market. Issuers have limited the products to closed panel plans
(HMO and EPO). lIssuers offer no platinum level plans. Coverage of brand name prescription drugs is
most often subject to deductible and coinsurance as opposed to copayments. These restricted product
and plan options have evolved over time in attempts to address adverse selection. While a limited
number of plans with out of network benefits were available last year, none are available in 2017. The
issuer withdrew the plans citing adverse selection as the primary reason for the withdrawal.

Most issuers in the New Jersey small employer market offer a variety of products with some closed
panel plans such as HMO and EPO but also offer plans with out of network options such as PPO and
POS. Issuers have been able to offer a wide variety of products and plans because they have not faced
the selection issues that exists in the individual market. If an issuer offers closed panel plans along with
plans with out of network benefits, with plans across all metal levels, and with a variety of moderate as
well as rich prescription drug benefits, it would be very easy to determine which employees would
gravitate toward the rich plans and which would elect the less rich options. The higher value plans will
be routinely selected against by a select segment of employees. That selection disrupts any reasonable
assumptions issuers made when pricing the plans. Issuers could react by raising premiums or they could
react as they have done in the individual market by greatly curtailing the choice of products and

plans. Neither is a desirable consequence.

Small employers in New Jersey have enjoyed the protections of New Jersey law, N.J.S.A. 17B:27A-17 et
seq. since 1994. Striking the appropriate balance between employer requests and the overall health of
the small employer market has not been without challenge. New Jersey currently allows a much
modified version of “vertical choice” whereby each issuer is given the opportunity to set limits on the
number of plans an employer can offer employees by means of underwriting rules. The issuers
generally limit the number of plans to three and further limit the types of plans that may be
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selected. The reliance on issuer underwriting rules allows each issuer to manage adverse selection
based on the nature of each issuer’s products and plan options.

Another consideration is the fact that the selection risk associated with vertical choice would be unique
to issuers participating in the FF-SHOP since issuers offering products only outside of the FF-SHOP need
not be exposed to the added risk of vertical choice. This would create rate and cost pressures that are
not equal among issuers selling small employer coverage in New Jersey and place FF-SHOP participating
issuers at a competitive disadvantage because they must use the same premium structure in and
outside of the FF-SHOP.

For these reasons, New Jersey recommends that vertical choice not be available to New Jersey
employers electing coverage through the FF-SHOP.

If you have any questions or require further information regarding our recommendation please contact
me.
Ellen

Ellen F. DeRosa

Executive Director

Individual and Small Employer Health Coverage Programs
New Jersey Department of Banking and Insurance

PO Box 325

[20 West State Street]

Trenton, NJ 08625

Phone: 609-633-1882 ext 50302

Fax: 609-633-2030

E-mail: ellen.derosa@dobi.nj.gov

Website: www.state.nj.us/dobi/division insurance/ihcseh/index.html



mailto:ellen.derosa@dobi.nj.gov
http://www.state.nj.us/dobi/division_insurance/ihcseh/index.html

